

# TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 www.exeternh.gov

## PUBLIC NOTICE EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION

# **Monthly Meeting**

The Exeter Conservation Commission will meet in the Nowak Room of the Town Office Building, Exeter on **Tuesday, December 13<sup>th</sup>, 2016 at 7:00 P.M.** 

#### Call to Order:

- 1. Introduction of Members Present
- 2. Public Comment

#### **Action Items**

- 1. Forest management plan development opportunity for Elliott Conservation Parcel
- 2. 2017 Annual Priority Setting
- 3. Committee Reports
  - a. Property Management
  - b. Trails
  - c. Outreach
- 4. Approval of Minutes: November 15<sup>th</sup>, 2016
- 5. Other Business
- 6. Next Meeting: Date Scheduled (1/10/17), Submission Deadline (12/30/16)

### Work Session

The Commission will hold a work session on board education topics immediately following meeting.

Carlos Guindon, Chair Exeter Conservation Commission December 9<sup>th</sup>, 2016 Exeter Town Office, Exeter Public Library, and Town Departments.



#### **Exeter WRP easement**

1 message

**Smart, Brooke - NRCS, Dover, NH** <brooke.smart@nh.usda.gov> To: "kmurphy@exeternh.gov" <kmurphy@exeternh.gov> Wed, Nov 23, 2016 at 10:37 AM

Hi Kristen,

Attached are WRP forest enhancement project documents for your review. I'm wondering if the Town of Exeter would be interested to obtain a Forest Management Plan under the program as part of the restoration. The expense can be covered under the agreement with Rockingham County Conservation District that runs out 7/1/2017. If so, you can obtain a quote from a forester for phase 1 services and send it my way. RCCD would enter into a contract to pay the forester for their services. Let me know if there is interest when you can.

Thanks, Brooke

#### Brooke Smart

Resource Conservationist for Easement Programs

Asian American and Pacific Islander Special Emphasis Program Manager for NH

Natural Resource Conservation Service

United States Department of Agriculture

273 Locust Street, Suite 2D

Dover, NH 03820

603-868-9931 x106

Fax: 855-428-0332

This electronic message contains information generated by the USDA solely for the intended recipients. Any unauthorized interception of this message or the use or disclosure of the information it contains may violate the law and subject the violator to civil or criminal penalties. If you believe you have received this message in error, please notify the sender and delete the email immediately.

2 attachments

- WRP\_ForestlandEnhancementOverview.docx
- NH WRP Forest Enhancement Project\_ForesterSOW.docx

#### WRP Forest Regeneration Enhancement Project Overview

Background: Past forest clearing and timber harvesting activities related to food and fiber production have altered the species composition within forested wetlands and adjacent uplands resulting in decreased forest stand diversity and reduced presence of large course woody debris decomposition. Shade tolerant species such as beech, red maple and hemlock have been able to dominate many areas.

Goals and Objectives: Restore ecosystem health by increasing vegetative community diversity and large course woody debris decomposition within forestland. Promote forests containing multiple age groups using single tree, group selection and shelterwood regeneration systems where appropriate to increase mast production, enhance wildlife habitat and improve future timber resources. Identify sites that have been high graded or have poor quality timber resources that can be managed to provide early successional habitat and promote regeneration of preferred species. Retain seed trees in the over story to enhance natural regeneration. See attached WRP Forest Regeneration Enhancement General Guidelines for more information on program objectives.

Project Partner Roles and Responsibilities

UNHCE:

- Provide technical assistance to NRCS in identifying management areas
- Coordinate with NRCS, landowner and private foresters to develop prescriptions
- Review proposals completed by NH Licensed Professional Foresters (LPF)

LPF:

- Submit proposals according to WRP general guidelines and scope of services for Phase 1 Services
- Upon selection, complete Phase 1 Services and provide draft report to NRCS, Landowners, RCCD or WEI for review.
- Upon approval of Phase 1 recommendations from project partners and with landowner decision to proceed with implementation, provide Phase 2 Implementation Services
- Provide estimate of timber tax to landowner and inform landowner of timber tax responsibility

Landowners, RCCD or WEI and NRCS:

- Request and review proposals from LPF for Phase 1 Services
- Provide approval to LPF to proceed with providing Phase 1 Services
- NRCS to pay expenses to RCCD or WEI who will then be responsible for paying LPF
- Provide approval for LPF to proceed with implementation of recommendations (Phase 2 Implementation services)
- Provide oversight and final inspection

NH WRP Forest Regeneration Enhancement Project

Licensed Professional Forester – Implementation Scope of Work

- Phase 1 Planning Services
  - Baseline inventory of timber resources within identified management areas and existing habitat features (pre-condition)
  - Written forest stand descriptions and management prescriptions with recommended schedule/timing describing regeneration methods to be employed, expected forest composition, enhanced habitat features to meet program objectives (post condition)
  - Incorporate Natural Heritage Bureau Memo identified plant and animal T/E species or communities into management prescriptions
  - project layout maps identifying forest stands, locations of trails and landings, temporary stream crossings
  - o identify any forestry notification or wetland permits that may be required
  - summary of estimated harvest volumes, volumes to be retained as large course woody debris and volumes to remain standing
  - estimated costs of operation itemized for each prescription to include an estimate of harvest volumes and anticipated market value (if applicable) or cost for precommercial and/or wildlife habitat management practices, management costs associated with marking trees, logging operation coordination, supervision and trails/landings, temporary crossings and site stabilization costs
  - Site Stabilization Plan following Best Management Practices Manual for Erosion Control on Timber Harvesting Operations in NH
- Phase 2 Implementation Services
  - o Layout/Marking services
  - Obtain several bids from logging contractors
  - o Summary of expected operation revenues and expenses by stand
  - Provide final implementation plan with input from project partners
  - Obtain all necessary state and local permits, provide copies to RCCD or WEI, NRCS and landowner
  - File form PA-7 Notice of Intent to Cut, provide copy to RCCD or WEI, NRCS and landowner
  - Coordinate and oversee logging operations provide work order/contract with logger to RCCD, WEI, NRCS and landowner
  - Provide a final report on completed projects to RCCD or WEI, NRCS and landowner
  - Inform landowner of any timber tax that must be paid and income that must be reported
  - Complete form PA-8 Report of Wood or Timber Cut, provide copy to RCCD or WEI, NRCS and landowner
  - Any other documentation regarding finances

2017 Activity Planning
Full Moon Snowshoe - Feb
Groomed Raynes Snowshoe/ski loop - Winter
Raynes State Register Listing - Winter
Raynes on CIP in 2017 for 2018 - Fall
Blandings/Vernal Pool Education Event - Forest Ridge HOA - Spring
Trail Passport revisiting - Spring/Summer
McDonnell Scout Project - Spring
Interns for Property Inspections - Summer
Complete new Little River Trail
National Trails Day Event - June 4
Earth Day event? (Sat 4/22)
Woodcock Walk at Raynes or Morrissette - Late March early Apr

#### CONSERVATION COMMISSION NOVEMBER 15, 2016 DRAFT MINUTES

#### 1. Call to Order:

Chair Carlos Guindon called the session to order at 7:00 pm.

Members present were Andrew Koff, Alyson Eberhardt, Virginia Raub, Carlos Guindon, Chair, Bill Campbell, Vice Chair, Todd Piskovitz, Anne Surman, BOS Representative, and David O'Hearn, Alternate Member.

Staff present were Kristen Murphy, Natural Resources Planner, and David Pancoast, Recording Secretary.

#### 2. Public Comments:

There were none.

#### **Action Items:**

1. Minimum Impact Expedited Wetland Permit Application from Exeter River MHP Cooperative, Hemlock Street, for temporary impacts to a wetland for utility crossing for new water and sewer infrastructure. Tax Map 95, Lot 64 (Paige Libbey, of Jones and Beach)

Mr. Libbey presented a summary of the matter.

Ms. Raub asked what timeframe would the work occur? Mr. Libbey said they anticipate wetlands crossing/impact would occur this fall and stabilization would be done then too. This is the first big step for the MHP park upgrades, which is 34 years old. Ms. Raub suggested that they check with the Natural Resources Planner on procedures. Mr. Libbey said no fertilizers are to be used.

Wetlands seed mix is a specialty mix that they will use to stabilize the area. Mr. Campbell asked about the applicant working with drainage on Hemlock Street as well. Mr. Libbey said they will be doing a plunge pool in an upland area for sheet flow off the street and whatever is coming across it. \_\_\_\_(?).

Mostly this is a seepage wetlands system. There is some cape cod berming now, which was thrown together. A new road profile and road crowning will improve drainage systems.

He has a form with him for signature if the Commission approves this, so that he can get it to Mr. Dave Price of the State right away to get going for December 2016 activity to allow for the work to be done this year.

Entire area is owned by the Coop, some 100 acres, largest such park in NH. Ms. Eberhardt questioned the orientation of the silt fencing in one corner of the project. Mr. Libbey said it was a scrivenor's error on the plan, that it keeps going and the whole area is wet. Mr. Koff asked about invasive species in the wetlands area. Mr. Libbey said it's forested so no scrub swamp wetlands for them to take hold in. Mostly it's purple loosestrife and phragmites. Not going to bring them in with topsoil.

Ms. Eberhardt asked if silt fence in place for 18 months and if so, how often will it be inspected and maintained? Mr. Libbey said he would be there daily during construction and it would be inspected daily and maintained as needed.

Ms. Murphy said this was expedited form, not the Town's form. Mr. Libbey said this State form goes to the State. [Mr. Guindon read the salient provisions into the record for the Commission, but they are not included here, for sake of minutes brevity.] Summary provisions are to agree to not intervene, and to agree the Commission has no objections to the project. Ms. Raub moved for approval of the expedited wetlands permit application. Mr. Campbell seconded and it passed unanimously. Chair Guindon signed the form for Mr. Libbey. Mr. Libbey said most of the other projects for the park are years and years out in terms of being done.

#### 2. Committee Reports:

**a. Property Management/Monitoring:** Mr. Guindon said he hasn't been able to be out much. Mr. Campbell said that before the pumpkin festival, he walked the Raynes Barn area. There was discussion on this property. Ms. Murphy said she has started to put together reports which is done annually. She scheduled a walk with some new owners on next Tuesday, if anyone can and wants to join her, they are welcome.

Ms. Raub asked the status of the inspection of 80 Epping Road, the parcel donated to the Commission, and Ms. Murphy said she hadn't had a chance to

look at it yet. Ms. Raub said she will follow up on this property. Because no interns, Ms. Murphy said she has inspected some properties aerially with Google Earth 2016, which is up-to-date. The Chair encouraged the members to get out on to properties.

### b.Trails: Update on Trail and Timber Harvest Path Inventory, Update on Fall Repairs, Little River Trail Day

The Chair reported that he and Ms. Murphy started mapping the trails that were appearing in the harvest area. Ms. Murphy said that starting in the east, she's done the Fort Rock Trail, did it in two days. She said they don't need to contract with Charley since it goes well and quickly.

Part of this effort was updating the trails data, which Ms. Murphy put together today as an overlay. How trails have changed over time is very interesting There was discussion on Henderson Swasey property over time, starting in the early 2000's, then in 2009 and finally into 2016. New trails that were not approved/constructed by the Commission are in there, but all connect to the Town trails. There is an impact from the timbering and she had to overbrush some timbered paths so folks didn't use them.

Ms. Murphy informed the Commission that Mark King has closed the trail on his property.

Mr. Guindon said this mapping would be good and useful over time. Ms. Eberhardt said this increase in trails is an impact.

Ms. Murphy said one of the base maps on GPS is more up to date than Town mapping. If go through change in deciding on the trails increase, she's not sure how that gets corrected.

The 911 group wants the Town's trail data for access information for use in emergencies.

The plan is to collect all possible data so harvest paths can be discussed for resolutions.

Bridge work was done at Forrest Ridge and has been completed and it's very fancy. [No members have been out there yet.]

The Chair said that the Little River Trail Day was one work day but it needs a better job in the trail being marked. There was discussion on this. If others want to be involved in it, he plans to do it at the end of December. Mr. Koff said he would help out with it. Ms. Eberhardt said she might be able to go also.

#### c.Outreach: Raynes Farm Great Pumpkin Toss Event Update:

Ms. Raub reported that the Toss was a huge event, successful and very well attended. Mr. Piskovitz and Mr. O'Hearn got the cars into the area all day but Mr. Piskovitz said a police detail is definitely needed next year and at least four folks helping with directing cars to the parking spots. Mr. O'Hearn said some way to get elders closer to the event from the parking was needed. Mr. Piskovitz said that some handicapped spots were also necessary. Next year the Commission needs to start earlier on this. A Police detail would assist in getting drivers in and out, but would have to be paid for.

Ms. Raub said this event put Exeter on the map. Mr. Piskovitz said all people leaving said it was a great event and good fun. The vendors were great, with tractor rides and Apple Annie's was sold out. Historical Society did well too. Band provided excellent backdrop. Ms. Murphy reported final figure between Ben Anderson and collection boxes was \$350, \$100 from a single donation and cash donations of \$100. Tee Shirt sales were \$215, and there are more to be sold. Volunteer signs and time and effort were huge, at little cost to the Commission. Mr. Anderson got 400 email contacts, and ConCom got about 50 emails. Ms. Raub said they should be used as a data base to reach out for future events and such. The Barn had a sea of people all during the event. Ms. Raub never got outside the Barn. First Saturday after Halloween will be the Great Pumpkin Toss Day event for next year. There was discussion on the fact that this was such a well-received event and about costs.

Mr. Koff said fund-raising pitch with a goal amount would be needed. Ms. Eberhardt said it needs to be a priority and that Ben Anderson needs to train the event workers in raising money. She also said that special tee-shirts or sweatshirts for the ConCom members would be a great way to identify them and have a question printed on it as a discussion starter. Mr. Campbell said that's a great idea and that such uses of the Barn are great for the Town.

Ms. Eberhardt suggested that Ms. Surman mention this at the next BOS session. Mr. O'Hearn said that at 3 pm there were 300 cars parked there. There was discussion on the history of that area and specifics of prior uses there.

Ms. Eberhardt asked if the Commission should commit to the Toss next year. It will be held the first Saturday after Halloween. Pumpkins came from a Church in Portsmouth, got several hundred pumpkins donated. Mr. Guindon discussed resources. Ms. Murphy said that the Commission had approved up to \$300 for the event. There was only one invoice submitted for the event. There was more discussion on the costs. The trebuchet was \$2,000, which was very expensive and the Commission has no way to cover that cost. Ms. Eberhardt moved the \$85 from the bridge project be paid over to Ben Anderson for his efforts. Mr. Campbell seconded and the vote was unanimously approved.

### 3. Approval of Minutes: October 11, 2016:

After discussion, corrections, changes and additions to the draft minutes of October 11, 2016, Mr. Campbell moved approval of those minutes as corrected, Ms. Surman seconded, Ms. Eberhardt abstained, and they were otherwise unanimously approved.

#### 4. Other Business:

Ms. Eberhardt received a letter commending Ms. Murphy on website page. Stewardship network traffic has been driven by ConCom's website efforts by Ms. Murphy. Mr. Guindon said that someone asked him about volunteering and he directed them to the page. Ms. Raub said that social media is vastly under-rated.

Town Manager Russ Dean had contacted Ms. Murphy about use of Henderson Swasey for an off leash dog use area. She told him the Commission might not want to address it. Ms. Surman raised that the Selectmen had something on it last night for dog park interest, so it's out in the public. A recent citizen's petition failed. It's becoming more official lately. No action was taken at the BOS. Other towns and cities have done them. There was discussion on this matter. Ms. Raub asked if the Commission should vote anything on it. Mr. Dean had suggested that either Henderson Swasey or another area might have an off-leash dog area. Ms. Murphy said 2 years ago off-leash dogs were harassing hikers and others on some properties. Many trails lead to private backyards. An off-leash dog appeared on a property and threatened someone, so the Police were called. Dogs must be on a leash for the enjoyment of all. Mr. Piskovitz, thought the ConCom should keep its current position of no dogs off-leash because properties are for the general use of all, not just dog owners. Mr. Campbell said that a policy allowing it would just attract more folks to do it there. The Southeast Land Trust has Pennal Park off Pickpocket Rd that allows it. Ms. Eberhardt said that she thought if any other property in Town might work instead of Henderson-Swasey area. Mr. Guindon said that numbers of users leads to issues on this.

Continuing discussion ensued. Raynes Barn area is used for an off-leash area by many folks.

Mr. Koff reported that he saw the YMCA Director Rob McGregor who was asking the activities park status. He did not know about the offset by DPW on sewer line. Ms. Murphy did write to legal counsel on legal liability and case law on passive recreation and the sewer line. The Commission was waiting for a formal proposal from the Y on this, but hasn't gotten it yet.

Mr. Koff said he went to the NHACC Conference this past Saturday which had many good topics and work sessions. There was a good one on invasives and one on fundamentals of ConComs and another on the wetlands review process. Third party technical review on a major project is sometimes warranted. This was discussed with respect to Exeter's Commission. The developer pays for it and it can be very worthwhile. Wetlands impacts were discussed. The Planning Board uses third party review on many projects. Zoning regulations deal with wetlands and ConCom can always request that, which is best to do so through the Planning Board. Ms. Murphy said another local town has a list of things to look for with a wetlands scientist's stamp on it.

#### 5. Non-public session per RSA 91-A :3, II (c).

[8:41 pm] Ms. Murphy said there's a process for non-public session (NPS). Mr. Campbell moved go into NPS, seconded by Ms. Raub and a roll call vote was taken, which was unanimously approved.

#### [NPS minutes were taken by Ms. Murphy]

[8:57 pm] There was a motion by Mr. Campbell to come out of public session, seconded by Mr. Piskovitz and a roll call voice vote to come out of NPS and back to regular session was taken and was unanimous. Ms. Raub moved to seal the NPS

minutes pursuant to RSA 91-A. Mr. Campbell seconded. Mr. Campbell explained that the motion to seal was just a formality.

### 6. Next Meeting: Date Scheduled (12/13/16), Submission Deadline (12/2/16)

### 7. Work session:

The scheduled work session was cancelled but a brief overview was given by Ms. Murphy. Ms. Eberhardt said there is frustration on incomplete wetlands applications, so creating expectations for applicants would be fair, rather than put it all on Ms. Murphy. She just wants to empower the Commission and get higher quality submissions and plans for resource protection. Two sections of criteria the Commission would expect, the first ones are mandatory, second section are suggested/recommended. Second piece is for ConCom, and was put together by Ms. Murphy. Everyone should review a wetlands permit and think all this through.

Discussion lead to the Commission members agreed to think about all this and address it later on. NHAPC questions might be considered for this process. Ms. Raub had a question on timing. When does the Planning Dept receive a full set of plans for a wetlands application. Ms. Murphy said that has to be done at the start of the process. Ms. Raub said if want to see full set of plans, need to go look at them. Ms. Murphy said she has multiple copies of large scale plans for Commission review before or after sessions. Ms. Murphy said that submission requirements should be met and the Commission needs to decide what it wants on that.

The Chair reminded the members to submit the areas of interest for future coverage, get them to Ms. Murphy and confirm commitments of members on that.

### 8. Adjournment:

There being no further business before the Commission, Mr. Campbell moved to adjourn, seconded by Mr. Piskovitz, and the motion passed unanimously. Chair Guindon adjourned the session at 9:11 pm.

#### **Potential Training Topics**

**Commission Basics** 

- Information Resources
  - By- Laws
  - CC Handbook
  - Conservation Fund Guidebook
  - Municipal Association's website & Town and Country pubs
- RSA 36-A
  - What MUST a Commission Do?
  - What MAY a Commission Do?
  - Right to Know Law (RSA 91-A)
    - What is a meeting
    - Email Communication

By- Laws

•

- Membership
- Responsibility of Officers
- Committees
- Operating Procedures

**Exeter Regulations** 

• Zoning Ordinance

Application Review

- Plan Reading
- Wetlands
  - Dredge and Fill Applications
  - Wetland Mitigation

Exeter's Conservation Lands

- Location
- Field Inspection
  - GPS on Mobile Devices
  - Property Monitoring Basics

**Exeter Planning Documents** 

- Master Plan Water Resources Chapter
- Master Plan Conservation & Preservation Chapter
- Natural Resource Inventory
- Geomorphic Assessment